
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR COUNCIL MEETING HELD JUNE 3, 2014:   
A. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s): 

1. Regular Meeting of May 20, 2014. 
2. Special Meeting of May 22, 2014. 

B. Proclamation Declaring June 14, 2014 as “Flag Day in the City of Portales” – El Portal Daughters of the 
American Revolution. 

C. Request for Approval for Permission to Contract with Privett Electric, LLC for Replacement & Update of 
Electrical Service/Wiring of Lime Street Pump. 

D. Request for Approval of Contract for “Dark Fiber” with Yucca Telecommunications. 
E. Item(s) from Economic Development Finance Review Committee: 

1. Resolution #13-14-50, Recommendation by Economic Development Finance Review Committee for a 
request for Funding by ENMU Foundation for Professional Services for Stadium Architectural Related 
Expenses. 

2. Project Participation Agreement between the City of Portales and ENMU Foundation for Professional 
Services for Stadium Architectural Related Expenses. 

F. Other Business/Citizens to be Heard. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTALES met in regular session Tuesday, June 3, 2014, at 7:00 
p.m., in the Council Chambers in the Memorial Building in full conformity with the rules and regulations.  
Mayor King called the meeting to order and asked City Clerk Martinez-Terry to all roll.  Those present and 
constituting a quorum were: 
 
 
MAYOR:  Sharon L. King     
 
 
MAYOR PRO-TEM: Michael G. Miller   
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Matthew Tod Hunton (absent)  Oscar H. Robinson    
   Leo Lovett      Antonio O. Salguero (absent) 
    Lenard Michael Lucero     Keith A. Thomas    
     Dianne Y. Parker    
        
 
STAFF PRESENT: Doug Redmond, City Manager  Johnny DeSha, Public Wks. Director 
   Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk  Pat Gallegos, Police Chief  

Steve Doerr, City Attorney  Jamie L. Rose, Assistant to City Mgr.   
Dennis Hales, I.T. Director   Carla Weems, Administrative Assistant 

 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Lillian Bowes, Press   Vickie Stratton, DAR 

Cori Snobble, DAR   Amelia Christensen, Homespot/MainStreet
   

Mayor King asked Councilor Lovett to give the invocation, and Jamie Rose, Assistant to City Manager, to lead 
the Pledge of Allegiance and the Salute to the New Mexico flag. 
 
 
(A)  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 
 

1. Regular Meeting of May 20, 2014. 
 

Mayor King asked the Council to consider the minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 20, 2014.   She asked 
the pleasure of the Council.  Mayor Pro-Tem M iller made the motion to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of May 20, 2014 as presented.  Councilor Robinson seconded the motion.  All 
Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  



Minutes of June 3, 2014…………………………………………………………..  2 

 
2. Special Meeting of May 22, 2014. 

 
Mayor King asked the Council to consider the minutes of the Special Meeting of May 22, 2014.   She asked 
the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Robinson made the motion to approve the minutes of the 
special meeting of May 22, 2014 as presented.  Councilor Lucero seconded the motion.  All 
Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 
 
(B)  PROCLAMATION DECLARING JUNE 14, 2014 AS “FLAG DAY IN THE CITY OF PORTALES” – 
EL PORTAL DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION  
 
Mayor King asked Vickie Stratton and Cori Snobble of El Portal Daughters of the American Revolution to 
come forward to receive the proclamation declaring June 14, 2014, as “Flag Day in the City of Portales.”  
Mayor King read the proclamation aloud to the two ladies and the audience.  She asked Ms. Stratton to say a 
few words about the annual proclamation.  Ms. Stratton commented that this proclamation is brought to the 
Mayor to gain attention for the importance of celebrating the day.    
  
 
(C)  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL FOR PERMISSION TO CONTRACT WITH PRIVETT ELECTRIC, LLC 
FOR REPLACEMENT/WIRING OF LIME STREET PUMP (STATION) 
 
Mayor King asked John DeSha, Public Works Director, to present the request for approval to contract with 
Privett Electric, LLC for replacement and update of the electrical service and wiring of Lime Street Pump.  
Public Works Director John DeSha told the Council that quotations were requested for replacement and 
update of the electrical service and wiring of Lime Street pump station, which was approved by the state 
Construction Program Bureau for use of the remaining grant funds on SAP 13-1485-STB.  He reported that 
the RFQ was requested from five vendors and only two vendors submitted quotations.  Privett Electric, LLC 
submitted the low quotation at $26,926.58, including NMGRT.  He asked the Council to approve the contract 
with Privett Electric, LLC since the state has granted concurrence.  He stated that, if approved, the contract 
will be submitted to the City Attorney for review prior to execution.  He asked for questions from the Council.  
Councilor Thomas asked for clarification of the number of vendors submitting quotations.  Mr. DeSha 
answered that out of five quotations issued to vendors, only two of them responded.  Mayor King asked the 
pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Lovett made the motion to grant permission to contract w ith 
Privett Electric, LLC for replacement/ w iring of Lime Street Pump Station upon review  by the 
City Attorney.  Councilor Parker seconded the motion.  All Council members present voted in 
favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 
 
(D)  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR “DARK FIBER” WITH YUCCA 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mayor King asked I. T. Director Dennis Hales to present the request for approval of a contract with Yucca 
Telecommunications for “Dark Fiber” with Yucca Telecommunications.  Mr. Hales asked the Council for 
approval for the contract for dark fiber—fiber cable to stretch to every building in the City organization to the 
service between the locations.  He estimated that the City will realize a savings of $5,000.00 a year.  He 
further stated that 13 current fiber connections will be disconnected for a savings of $1,190.00 a month.  Mr. 
Hales stated that this will improve service with computers and the City’s V.O.I.P. telephone system, allow 
transfer of large documents to a single storage server and reliable remote control access of the SCADA 
system at the new Waste Water Treatment Plant.  He reported that the contract includes estimated taxes 
and surcharges of 10% and a 15% discount for a 5-year contract.  Councilor Parker asked how long it would 
take to make the connections.  Mr. Hales responded that it would be completed by the middle of August.  
City Manager commented that this is just like what is used by the schools.  Councilor Robinson asked if the 



Minutes of June 3, 2014…………………………………………………………..  3 

airport would be connected.  Mr. Hales responded that the airport is too far away, that the City will Use 
wireless for the airport.  He added that the connection would be made to the Waste Water Treatment 
eventually.  Councilor Thomas asked it would connect the SCADA system used for the water wells.  Public 
Works Director DeSha responded that it is too far away.  Councilor Lucero asked if there would be any 
construction connected to this contract.  Hales responded that the Dark Fiber is already in place and will 
simply allow interconnection with the City’s systems.  Councilor Lucero asked if it was a budgeted item.  Mr. 
Hales and Mr. Redmond both stated that it is a budgeted item.  Mayor King asked the pleasure of the 
Council. Councilor Parker made the motion to approve the contract for “Dark Fiber” w ith Yucca 
Telecommunications.  Councilor Thomas seconded the motion.  All Council members present 
voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 
 
(E)  ITEM(S) FROM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE: 
 

1. Resolution #13-14-50. Recommendation by Economic Development Finance Review 
Committee for a Request for Funding by ENMU foundation for Professional Services for 
Stadium Architectural Related Expenses. 

 
Mayor King asked City Manager Redmond to present Resolution #13-14-50, Recommendation by Economic 
Development Finance Review Committee for a Request for Funding in the amount of $500,000.00 by the 
ENMU Foundation for Professional Services for Stadium Architectural Related Expenses.  City Manager 
Redmond told the Council that there are two actions needed:  adoption of the resolution and approval of the 
Project Participation Agreement.  He asked that the Council approve both actions.  He commented that the 
stadium project has been presented by Steve Doerr several times at different boards and committees.  He 
told the Council that there will be a change to the agreement to allow allocations over a two-year period 
instead of over a 5-year period.  Mayor King asked about the amount in the LEDA fund.  City Manager 
responded that the fund has over $979,000 available for grant allocations.  Mayor Pro-Tem Miller 
commented that there would be more requests for this project and that the members of the Economic 
Development Finance Review Committee felt very comfortable with fund this grant.  City Manager Redmond 
stated that approximately $230,000.00 is generated annually.  Councilor Thomas agreed that the LEDA fund 
will be refreshed throughout the year.  Councilor Lovett commented that he felt that it is a good project.  
Councilor Robinson asked what the reason was for the change to the agreement.  Mr. Redmond stated that 
the expenses will be upfront costs.  The Committee wanted to have the money available initially to cover 
survey fees, engineering and architectural costs.  Mayor King asked ENMU President Steven Gamble if he 
had any comments.  Dr. Gamble thanked the Council and told them that he thought the GO Bonds would be 
approved in the fall.  He added that the real benefit will be seen over the years.  Councilor Lovett disclosed 
that he is a member of the ENMU Foundation before the Mayor called for a vote.  Mayor King asked the 
pleasure of the Council. Councilor Thomas made the motion to adopt Resolution #13-14-50, 
accepting the recommendation of the Economic Development Finance Review  Committee 
regarding the request for funding by the ENMU Foundation for Professional Services for 
Stadium architectural related expenses.  Councilor Parker seconded the motion.  Roll call vote 
of all Council members present resulted in unanimous support of the motion.  No abstentions.  
Motion carried.  
 

2. Project Participation Agreement between the City of Portales and ENMU Foundation for 
Professional Services for Stadium Architectural Related Expenses. 

 
Mayor King asked the pleasure of the Council regarding the Project Participation Agreement between the 
City of Portales and ENMU Foundation for professional services for the stadium architectural related 
expenses.  Mayor King asked the pleasure of the Council. Mayor Pro-Tem Mil ler made the motion to 
approve the agreement formalizing the recommendation by the Economic Development Finance 
Review  Committee regarding the request for funding by the ENMU Foundation for Professional 
Services for Stadium architectural related expenses.  Councilor Robinson seconded the motion.  



Minutes of June 3, 2014…………………………………………………………..  4 

All Council members present voted in unanimous support of the motion.  No abstentions.  
Motion carried.  
  
  
(F)  OTHER BUSINESS/CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 
 
Mayor King asked for items of other business.    
 
Request for Update on Well Field:   Councilor Thomas asked about the wells—are they keeping up with 
the demand.  Public Works Director DeSha responded that the demand is 4 million plus per day.  All wells 
have been put into service.  He stated that we have lost a few wells but overall demand is dropping.  He 
added that the City wells are not having any trouble keeping up.  Councilor Thomas asked about the water 
tank.  DeSha responded that the tank is full at 30 feet.  He added that the department is not running all 
wells at the same time and that out of 42 wells only 4 wells are down.  He commented that possible reasons 
for this are that it could be formation problems or construction issues.  He reported that wells are not run at 
maximum capacity.  Councilor Thomas thanked him for the update. 
 
Status of Waste Water Treatment Plant:  Mayor King asked about a groundbreaking for the WWTP 
construction project.  Public Works Director DeSha stated that the work has been started so that the Council 
could have a groundbreaking ceremony any time.  He commented that the contractor has guaranteed that 
they will live in Portales during the project.  He added that the engineer of record will be on-site for the 
length of the project.  Councilor Robinson asked for a date for the groundbreaking.  City Manager Redmond 
stated that he would ask Administrative Assistant Carla Weems to send out a request to the Council to see 
when they could be present.  Mayor Pro-Tem Miller asked the City Manager to include the Bureau Secretary 
Ryan Flen.   
 
Status of the City Pool Leak:  Mayor King asked if the leak at the City pool had been fixed.  Public Works 
Director DeSha stated that it appears to be fixed, but wants to give it a while to make sure that it is fixed.  
Councilor Robinson asked DeSha how many years the repairs had extended the life of the pool.  DeSha 
responded that it had been given about 10 more years.  Mayor King thanked Ms. Jamie Rose, Assistant to 
the City Manager, for her help with the pool, and asked her to thank Ms. Bella Loomis for her help as well.   
 
Comments by Councilor Lucero:  Councilor Lucero commented that the upcoming construction work 
sounds very positive for gross receipts taxes and employment opportunities in the community. 
  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business or comments, Mayor King adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
       
Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk 


